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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU 
GOVERNOR 

May 4, 2018 

OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 

Concord, NH 03301-3834 
Telephone: (603) 271-2155 

Fax: (603) 271-2615 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu, 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

DIVISION OF PLANNING 

DIVISION OF ENERGY 

www.nh.gov/osi 

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement 
(Contract #1058298) with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (VC#l 77195), Berlin, NH, by increasing 
the contract amount by $580,067.00 from $5,843,671.00 to $6,423,738.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program 
(FAP), effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through September 30, 2018. This contract 
was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 13, 2017 (Item #35) and amended 
December 6, 2017 (Item# 22). 100% Federal Funds. 

Office of Strategic Initiatives, Fuel Assistance 
01-02-02-024010-77050000 
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief 

EXPLANATION 

FY 2018 

$580,067.00 

This contract amendment is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action 
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program. 

The additional amount requested in this contract amendment represents (the CAAs) share of Federal LIHEAP 
funding for PY 2018 received under the current Federal Budget on April 24, 2018. This OSI contract amendment 
provides the Community Action Agency with additional administrative and program funds to support eligible 
New Hampshire residents, especially the elderly , disabled and working poor citizens who are in need of 
assistance to help pay for heating costs this winter season. 

The Fuel Assistance Program (F AP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more 
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are 
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income 
guidelines. OSI subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing F AP services at the local level. 

Jn the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jared Chicoine 
Director 

G&C 06/06/18 
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 



OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT - TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 

AMENDMENT 

This Amendment dated May 4, 2018 is between the State of New Hampshire, Office of Strategic 
Initiatives, 107 Pleasant Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the 
"State") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos County, 
NH 03570 (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor"). 

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), Contract Number 
1058298, as approved by Governor and Council on September 13, 2017 (Item #35) and amended 
December 6, 2017 (Item #22), the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and 
conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as 
specified therein. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be 
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval 
of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and 

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain 
respects; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in 
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following: 

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as 
follows: 

A) PriceLimitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the 
current sum of $5,843,671.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of 
$6,423,738.00. 

B) Exhibit B Contract Price: Amend Exhibit B, first paragraph by striking the 
current sum of$5,843,671.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of 
$6,423,738.00. 

Amend Exhibit B, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $317 ,363 .00 
and inserting $368,800.00 for administrative costs. · 

Amend Exhibit B, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $5,325,834.00 
and inserting $5,854,464.00 for program costs. 

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms and 
Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force 
and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it existed 
immediately prior to this Amendment. 

TCCA Amendment 
Grant: G- l 8B I NHLIEA 
CFDA: 93.568 

Cootmctoc llllti•I" ~ 
Date: <-;- 9-I 0 
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Contract Amendment Office of Strategic Initiatives 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first 
above written. 

'State of New Hampshire 
County of Coos 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

By: 

xecutive Officer 

On this 9th day of May, before me, Kristen Partridge, the undersigned officer, personally 
appeared Jeanne L. Robillard, who acknowledged himself to be the Chief Executive Officer of Tri­
County Community Action Program, Inc., a corporation, and that he/she being authorized so to do, 
executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my han a 

My Commission expires: November 22, 20 2 

Approved as to form, execution and substance: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of 
New Hampshire at their meeting on 

TCCA Amendment 
Grant: G-18B 1 NHLIEA 
CFDA: 93.568 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Contractor Initials: 
Date: 5- 9 - \ f\ 

Page 2 of2 



State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CERTIFICATE 

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY 

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in 

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have 

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned. 

·Business ID: 63020 

Certificate Number: 0004079930 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed 

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire, 

this I Ith day of April A.D. 2018. 

William M. Gardner 

Secretary of State 



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 
(Corporate Authority) 

I, Gary Coulombe 
(name) 

, Clerk/Secretary of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 
(Corporation name) 

(hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly 
(state) 

elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the 
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such 
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on February 271

h, 2018, such authority 

to be in force and effect until September 30, 2018 
(contract tennination date) 

(date) 

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the 
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services: 

Jeanne L. Robillard Chief Executive Officer 
(name) (position) 

(name) (position) 

(5) the meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with ____ N~ew~H=am~p=shir=·~e~-----
(state of incorporation) 

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded 
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt of dated minutes or copy of article or section 
of authorizing by-law must be attached. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this 
8th day of May, 20 18. 

STATE OF 
COUNTY OF 

New Hampshire 
Coos 

On this 8th day of May, 20 ll_, before-me, Kristen Partridge the undersigned Officer, personally appeared Gary 
Coulombe who acknowledged her/himself to be the Secretary of Tri-County Community Action Program, 
Inc., a corporation and that she/he as such Secretary being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument 
for the purposes therein contained. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

Commission Expiration Date: Novmeber 22, 2022 
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I DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
~ 8/16/2017 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATIER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certainlpolicies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~~~~CT Karen Shaughriessy 

FIAI/Cross Insurance rA~gNr.To Ext): (603) 669-3218 I FAX (A/C Nol: (603) 645-4331 

1100 Elm Street ~oMl~~ss: kshaughnessy@crossagency.com 

INSURER(Sl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # · 

Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A :Technoloqy Ins. Co. 42376 
INSURED INSURER B :Wesco Ins. Co. 25011 
Tri-County Conununity Action Program, Inc INSURER c :AmGuard Ins Co 42390 
30 Exchange Street INSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

Berlin NH 03570 INSURERF: I 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:l 7-18 All lines REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR I ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE IN<:n WVD POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYl CMM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS n WI""°'" ""'MC ~"'IB> EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000 

CLAIMS-MADE W OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 

100,000 A PREMISES /Ea occurrence\ $ 

TPP1224751 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 

I GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000 

~--, DPRO 0Loc 3,000,000 _j POUCY JECT PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 

I OTHER: s 
I AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT- s 1,000,000 I Ea accidenll i-X' ANY AUTO 

-
.BODILY INJURY (Per person) s 

A ,_ ALLOWNED - SCHEDULED 
i-- AUTOS AUTOS TPP1224751 7 /l/2017 7/1/2018 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

- NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 
I HIRED AUTOS AUTOS rPer accident) s ,_ -
I Underinsured motorist s 1,000,000 

UMBRELLA LIAB 
HOCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s 2,000,000 -

B x EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 2,000,000 

OED I x I RETENTION s 10,000 WUM1565713 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 s 
WORKERS COMPENSATCON TRWC858263 I PER I I OTH-

X STATUTE ER ANn FMPI llYFRS" I IARll ITY YIN 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE [!] (3a.) NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDEO? ~/A 

c (Mandatory in NH) K- Matthews. R. Urban & 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 E.L. DISEASE ·EA EMPLOYEE $ 500,000 
If yes. describe under w. Hatch excluded E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below $ 500,000 

A Professional Liability TPP1224751 7/l/20l.7 7/1/2018 Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Aggregate $3,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached ir more space is required) 

.. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

Office of Strategic 
107 Pleasant 
Concord, 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 
INS025 /?01A01\ 

NH 
Street 
03301 

CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

Initiatives THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

T Franggos/JSC ·~~ 
© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are. registered marks of ACORD 



CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU 

GOVERNOR 

November 13, 2017 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 

l 07 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 
Concord, NH 03301-3834 
Telephone: (603) 271-2155 

Fax: (603) 271-2615 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu, 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

DIVISION OF PLANNING 

DIVISION OF ENERGY 

www.nh.gov/osi 

Approval by the Governor 
and Council on 12-· lP~11 

Agende Item 2.1 
~PO Jo5g19g 

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement 
(Contract# 1058298) with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (VC# 177195), Berlin, NH, by increasing 
the contract amount by $1,606,252.00 from $4,237,419.00 to $5,843,671.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program 
(FAP), effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through S~ptember 30; 2018. This contract 
was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 13, 2017, Item #35. 
100% Federal Funds. 

Office of Strategic Initiatives, Fuel Assistance 
01-02-02-024010-77050000 

. 074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief 

EXPLANATION 

FY 2018 

$1,606,252.00 

This contract amendment.is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action 
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program. 

The additional amount requested in this contract amendment represents (the CAAs) share of Federal LIHEAP 
funding for PY 2018 received under the current Continuing Resolution on October 20, 2017. This OSI contract 
amendment will provide the Community Action Agency with program funds to support eligible New Hampshire 
residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are in need of assistance to help pay for 
heating costs this winter season. . 

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more 
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are 
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income 
guidelines. OSI subcontracts fo the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP.services at the local level. 

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this program. 

Jared Chicoine 
Director 

\ 

G&C 12/06/I 7 

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 



OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT - TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 

AMENDMENT 

This Amendment dated November 2, 2017 is between the State of New Hampshire, Office of 
Strategic Initiatives, I 07 Pleasant Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to 
as the "State") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos 
County, NH 03570 (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor"). 

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), Contract Number 
1058298, as approved by Governor and Council on September 13, 2017 (Item #35), the Contractor has 
agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in 
consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be. 
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval 
of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and 

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain · 
respects; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in 
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following: 

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as 
follows: 

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the 
current sum of$4,237,419.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of · 
$5,843,671.00. . 

B) Exhibit B Contract Price: Amend Exhibit B, first paragraph by striking the 
current sum of$4,237,419.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of 
$5,843,671.00. 

Amend Exhibit B, second paragraph by striking the current sum of$3,719,582.00 
and inserting $5,325,834.00 for program costs. 

I 

· 2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms and 
Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force 
and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it existed 
immediately prior to this Amendment. 

TCCA Amendment 
Grant: G-18BINHLIEA 
CFDA: 93.568 

Contractor Initials: /?. 06 
Date: /UOC//7 

Page 1 of2 



Contract Amendment Office of Strategic Initiatives 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first 
above written. 

State of New Hampshire 
County of Coos 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

Tri oµnty Community Action Program, Inc. 

ii ·-._a~--
Executive Officer 

On this 61
h day of November 2017, before me, Suzanne C. French, the undersigned officer, 

personally appeared Robert G. Boschen, who acknowledged himself to be the Chief Executive Officer of 
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc, a corporation, and that he/she being authorized so to do, 
executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein 

0Nota 

My Commission expires: :Tvrie I'}, 201e, 

Approved as to form, execution and substance: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was appwved by the Governor and Council of the State of 
New Hampshire at their meeting on DEC 0 6 lU1t , _. 

TCCA Amendment 
Grant: G-18BINHLIEA 
CFDA: 93.568 

Contractor Initials: fl. G.G 
Date: 11 ldG 11rz 

Page2 of2 



Stat~ of Nevv Hampshire 

Departlnent of State 

CERT1FICATE 

L William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the State or New Hampshire, do hereby cciiii)' tha~ TRI-COUNTY COl\·1MUN !TY 

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact bu5iness in 

New Hampshire on May 18, l 965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by t.he Secretary of State's-office have 

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned. 

Business ID: 63020 

IN TESTll'vfONY \VHEREOF, 

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed 

the Seal ofthc State of New Hampshire., 

this 6th day of April A.O. 2017. 

William M. Gardner 

Secretary of State 



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 
(Corporate Authority) 

I, Gary Coulombe, Clerk/Secretary of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc 
(Name) (Corporation name) 

(Hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly 
(state) 

elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the 
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such 
books; ( 4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on August 22, 2017, such authority 

to be in force and effect until. September 30, 2018 
(Contract termination date) 

(date) 

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the 
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services: 

Robert G. Boschen, Jr 
(Name) 

(name) 

Chief Executive Officer 
(Position) 

(position) 

(5) the meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire 
(State of incorporation) 

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded 
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.· Excerpt of dated minutes or copy of article or section 
of authorizing by-law must be attached. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this 6th day of 

November,2017. ~~ 

Clerk/Secretary 
STATE OF New Hampshire 
COUNTY OF Coos 

On this 6th day of November, 2017, before me, Suzanne C. French the undersigned Officer, personally appeared 
Gary Coulombe who acknowledged her/himself to be the Secretary of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc 
a corporation and that she/he as such Secretary authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the 
purposes therein contained. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

Commission Expiration Date: June 1911\ 2018 
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I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 

~ 8/16/2017 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~~r,'CT Karen Shaughnessy 

FIAI/Cross Insurance rA~gNJ0 Ex1\: (603) 669-3218 I FAX tAIC Nol: (603) 645-4331 

1100 Elm Street ~DMDA~~ss:kshaughnessy@crossagency.com 

INSURERIS\ AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

Manchester NE 03101 INSURER A :Technoloqy Ins. Co. 42376, 

INSURED . 
INSURERB:Wesco Ins. Co. 25011 

Tri-County Conununity Action Program, Inc INSURER c :ArnGuard Ins Co 42390 

30 Exchange Street INSURER D: 

INSURER E: 

Berlin NE 03570 INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:l7-l8 All lines REVISION NUMBER: 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTVVITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR I TYPE OF INSURANCE 
ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS LTR '""'n l"n•n POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY\ fMM/DD/YYYYI 8 '°!"'"'"' O>'<MC LI~""' EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000 

CLAIMS-MADE GU OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 

100,000 A PREMISES fEa occurrence\ $ 

TPP122475l 7/1/2017 7 /l/2018 MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 

I GEN"L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $ 3,000,000 
!·~, DPRO- ~LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG s 3,000,000 ~_j POLICY JECT 

I OTHER: s 
J AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMff s 1,000,000 CEa accident\ -

~-'"'" -
.BODILY INJURY (Per person) s 

A ALLO\NNED SCHEDULED TPP1224751 7/1/2017 7 /1/2018 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) S 
AUTOS AUTOS >---- NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 

~ HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident\ $ 
~ 

I Underinsured motorist $ 1,000,000 

UMBRELi.A LIAB 
MOCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000 -

B x EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 2,000,000 

OED I x I RETENTION s 10,000 WUM1565713 7/1/2017 7 /1/2018 $ 

WORKERS COMPENSATION I PER I I OTH-TRWC858263 X STATUTE ER ANn FMPI OYFRS0 I IAAll ITY YIN 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 0 (3a.) NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A 

c (Mandatory in NH) K. Matthews. R. Urban I< 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEI $ 500,000 
1t yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below w. Hatch excluded E.L. DISEASE · POLICY LIMIT $ 500,000 

A Professional Liability - TPP1224751 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Aggregate $3,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

Office of Strategic 

107 Pleasant 
Concord, 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 

INS0251?n1~n11 

NH 
Street 
-03301 

CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

Initiatives THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

T Franggos/JSC ·~~~ 
© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU 

GOVERNOR 

August 25, 2017 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 

I 07 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 
Concord, NH 03301-3834 
Telephone: (603) 271-2155 

Fax: (603) 271-2615 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu, 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

DIVISION OF PLANNING 

DIVISION OF ENERGY 
www.nh.gov/osi 

Approval by the Governor 
and Council on 9 · 16· n 
Agend2 Item 35 ---=-'-"------.:.._ 

. Po 1osgi93 

I) Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County 
Community Action Program, Inc., (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $4,237,419.00 for the Fuel 
Assistance Program effective October 1, 2017 through September 3 0, 2018, upon approval of Governor and 
Executive Council. 100% Federal Funds. 

Funding is available in the following account: 

Office of Strategic Initiatives, Fuel Assistance 
01-02-02-024010-7705 0000 
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief 

FY2018 

$4,237,419.00 

2) Further request authorization to advance Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. $39,670.00 from the 
above-referenced contract amount. . 

EXPLANATION 

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies (CAA) 
in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the 
synergies that benefit the F AP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' ·implementation of several other federal 
assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver F AP services. OSI proposes to 
continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided F AP services at the local level for 
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the OSI F AP' Administrator in the implementation of the 
program. 

F AP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) 
Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified New Hampshire families, 
including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are targeted to low income households with high 
energy burdens. The current maximum income level is 60% of the State Median Income (SMI), which is 
$61,425.00 for a family of four. The average FAP benefit during the last program year was $622.22. 

The Lil-IEAP program operates on an October 1, 2017 to September 30, 2018 program year, but at this time 
Congress has not finalized appropriations for the Federal fiscal year 2018. Therefore, the contract amount for 

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 G&C 09/J 3117 



1-lis Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

;\ ugust 25, 2017 
Pagc2of2 

each of the Community Action Agencies is based on OSI's best estimate of anticipated Federal funding, 
including carryover funds from the prior program year. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless 
federal monies are available to be expended. The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the 
program between monthly reimbursements from the State. 

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support 
this program. 

Director 

JC/CML 

G&C 09/13117 



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1126/15) 

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must 
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract. 

AGREEMENT 
The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows: 

I. IDENTIFICATION. 
I. I State Agency Name 
Office of Strategic Initiatives 

1.3 Contractor Name 
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.2 State Agency Address 
I 07 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301-8501 

1.4 Contractor Address 
30 Exchange Streef, Berlin, NH 03570 

1.5 Co.ntractor Phone 
Number 

1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation 

(603) 752-7001 01-02-Q2-024010-77050000 
074-500587 
Activi Code: 02E l 8A 

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 
Celeste Lovett, Fuel Assistance Program A.dministrator 

1.11 Contractor Signature 

September 30, 2018 $4,237,419 

I. I 0 State Agency Telephone Number 
(603) 271-2155 

1.12 ·Name and Title of Contractor Signatory 
Robert G. Boschen, Jr., Chief Executive Officer 

1.13 Acknowle gement: State of New Hampshire , County of Coos 

On August 14. 2017 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block I. q, or satisfactorily 
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity 
lndieated in block 1.12. 
1.13.l Signature ofNotary Public or Justice ofthe Peace 

I. J 

By: 

Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace 

Suzanne C. French, Notary 

SUZANNE C. FRENCH 
. NofmyPubllc-New~ 
""1 Comn1861oo Expires June 19, 2016 

Director, On: 

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable) 

On: 

1.18 (if applicable) 

r 

~EPUlY SEGRETARY OF STATE SEP 1 3 2017 
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO 
BE PERFORMED. The State ofNew Hampshire, acting 
through the agency identified in block I. I ("State"), engages 
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perfonn, 
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or 
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached 
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference 
("Services"). 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES. 
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if 
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties 
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor 
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in 
block 1. I 8, unless no such approval is required, in which case 
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the:; 
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block , 
I. I 4 ("Effective Date"). 
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the 
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior 
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not 
become effective, the State shafl hav_e no liability to the 
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay 
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed. 
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date 
specified in block 1.7. 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including, 
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are 
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation 
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any 
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated 
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of 
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold 
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State 
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account 
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that 
Account are reduced or unavailable. 

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
5 .1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of 
payment are identified and more particularly described in 
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference. 
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the 
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all 
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the 
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete 
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State 
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract 
price. 

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts 
otherwise payable to the Contractor under ~his Agreement 
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. 
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the 
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in 
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually 
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 
1.8. 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LA \VS 
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6.1 Jn connection with the performance of the Services, the 
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations, 
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities 
which impose any' obligation or duty upon the Contractor, 
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity 
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary 
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication 
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can 
cmnmun'icate with, receive information from, and convey 
information to the Contractor. Jn addition, the Contractor 
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. 
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
not discriminate against employees or applicants for 
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, 
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take 
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination. · 
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the· 
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the 
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal 
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the 

.regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41 
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines· 
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to 
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to 
permit the State or United States access to any of the 
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of 
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders, 
and the covenants; terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

7. PERSONNEL. 
7 .1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all 
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The. Contractor 
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be 
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly 

1

1icensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable 
laws. 
7 .2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of 
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the 
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, 
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or 
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to 
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State 
employee or official, who is materially involved in the 
procurement, administration or performance of this 

Page 2of4 
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this 
Agreement. 
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block I .9, or his or 
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event 
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, 
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State. 

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. 
8.1 Any one or more of the following_acts or omissions of the 
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder 
("Event of Default"): 
8.1.1 failure to perforn1 the Services satisfactorily or on 
schedule; 
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or 
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition 
of this Agreement. 
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State 
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions: 
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event 
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the 
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) 
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is 
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two 
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination; 
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event 
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this 
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price 
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the 
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State 
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default 
shall never be paid to the Contractor; 
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to 
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any 
Event of Default; and/or 
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its 
remedies at law or in equity, or both. 

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ 
PRESERV A T!ON. 
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all 
information and things developed or obtained during the 
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this 
Agreement, including, but not limited t<?, all studies, reports, 
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, 
graphic representations, computer programs, computer 
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, 
all whether finished or unfinished. 
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from 
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose 
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and 
s11all be returned to the State upon demand or upon 
termination of this Agreement for any reason. 
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA 
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data 
requires prior written approval of the State. 

JO. TERMINATION. Jn the event of an early termination of 
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the 
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting 
Officer, not later than fifteen {15) days after the date of 
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in 
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to 
and including the date of termination. The form, subject 
matter, content, and numb,er of copies of the Termination 
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report 
described in the attached EXHIBIT A. 

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In 
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all 
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor 
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its 
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to 
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compens_ation 
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. 

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS. 
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any 
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and 
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be 
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written 
notice and consent of the State. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and 
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the 
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, 
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers 
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of, 
based or resulting from, arising out of(or which may he 
claimed to arise out of) tht; acts or omissions of the 
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby 
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

14. INSURANCE. 
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and 
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or 
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following 
insurance: 
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all 
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts 
ofnot less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000 
aggregate ; and 
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all 
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not 
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property. 
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.-J herein shall 
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the 
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of 
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNew 
Hampshire. 
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) 
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. 
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of 
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this 
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of 
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are 
incorporated herein by reference .. Each certificate(s) of 
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to 
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his 
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy. 

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
15. 1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, 
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with 
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A 
("Workers' Compensation"). 
I 5.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the 
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281 ~A, Contractor shall 
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure 
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in 
connection with activities which the person proposes to 
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall 
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his 
or her success·or, proof of Workers' Compensation in the 
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any 
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are 
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be 
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation 
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or 
any subcontractor or empioyee of Contractor, which might 
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers' 
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the 
Services under this Agreement. 

16.WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to 
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shal 1 
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of 
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express 
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a 
waiver of the right of the Stat.e to enforce each and all of the 
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default 
on the part of the Contractor. 

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party 
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the 
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United 
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses 
given in blocks 1.2 and I .4, herein. 

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, 
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed 
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such 
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no 

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to 
State law, rule or policy. 

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and 
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement 
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual 
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or 
in favor of any party. 

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to 
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be 
construed to confer any such benefit. 

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement 
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained 
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or 
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set 
forth in the attached EXHIBIT Care incorporated herein by 
reference. 

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of 
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect. 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may 
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall 
be.deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior 
Agreements and understandings relating hereto. 
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EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Contractor agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program Services to qualified low 
income individuals, and agrees to perform all such Services and other work necessary to 
operate the Program in accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles 
and objectives set forth in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual and other 
guidance as detennined by OSI. 

Fuel Assistance Program (F AP) Services will be defined to include the following 
categories: 

1. Outreach, eligibility, detennination and certification of F AP applicants. 

2. Payments directly to energy vendors: 
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered 
b. Lines of credit 
c. Budget plan payments 

3. Payments directly to landlords, via vouchers, for renters who pay their energy 
costs as undefined portions of their rent. 

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as 
defined in the Procedures Manual. 

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursement for goods or services 
delivered in accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above. 

LIHEAP18 
CFD/\.#93.568 
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Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 

EXHIBITB 
CONTRACT PRICE 

LIHEAP 

In consideration of the satisfaetory perfonnance of the services as detennined by the State, the 

State agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of$4,237,419 (which hereinafter is referred to 

as the "Grant"). 

Upon the State's receipt of the 2018 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from 

the US Department of Health and Human Services, the following funds will be authorized: 

$317,363 for administrative costs, of which $39,670 will be issued as a cash advance, 

$3,719,582 for program costs, $200,474 for Assurance 16. 

The dates for this contract are October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018. 

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the ~bove awarded funds will be provided in writing by the 

Office of Strategic IIlltiatives to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available. 

Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written 

documentatio.n of cash need is sµbmitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in 

accordance with procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program 

Procedures Manual. 

CFDA Title: 

CFDANo: 

Award Name: 

Federal Agency: 

LIHEAP18 
CFDA#93.568 

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program 

93.568 

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program 

Health & Human Services 
Administration for Children and Families 
Office of Community Services 

P37 Exhibit B 
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EXHIBIT C 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

1. Subparagraph 1.16 of the General Provisions, shall not apply to this agreement. 

2. On or before the date set forth in Block 1. 7 of the General Provisions the Contractor shall 
deliver to the state an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified 
independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government. 

3. This audit shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements. 
The Fuel Assistance Program shall be considered a "major program" for purposes of this 
audit. 

4. This audit repo1i shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or 
grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall 
utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every 
four years. 

5. The audit rep01i shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along witli. an 
agency response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all 
OMB letters written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to OSI. The audit shall be 
forwarded to OSI within one month of the time of receipt by the agency accompanied by 
an action plan for each finding or questioned cost. 

6. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject 
matter, content, and number of copies of the Tennination Report shall be identical to 
those of any Final Report described in Exhibit A." 

7. The costs charged under this contract shall be detennined as allowable under the cost 
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles. 

8. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the agency 
for 3 (three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 
200.333 -Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been 
resolved. 

9. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human 
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995", the 
following provisions are applicable to this grant award: 

LIHEAP18 

CFDA#93.568 

a) Section 507: "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products-It is the 
sense of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and 
products purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American­
made." 
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b) Section508: "When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid 
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in 
whole or in part with Federal money, all States receiving Federal funds, including 
but not limited to State and local governments and recipients of Federal research 
grants, shall clearly state (l)°the percentage of the total costs of the program or 
project which will be financed with Federal money, (2) the dollar amount of 
Federal funds for the project or program, and (3) percentage and dollar amount of 
the total costs of the project 01: program that will be financed by non­
governmental sources." 

10. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests 
shall be submitted to the State within sixty (60) days of the completion date (Agreement 
Block 1.7). · 

11. ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance 
Program expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance 
Program vendor payments. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance · 
program payments, must be transferred from the Community Action Agency's general 
operating account into a specific Fuel Assistance Program account within 48 hours after 
being received electronically from the State. CAAs must submit the bank account number 
of the designated bank account for the advance funds to OSI prior to the electronic 
submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent advance program funds must remain in the 
F AP dedicated account at all times and cannot be comingled wl.th any other CAA funds. 
CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of the F AP dedicated account bank 
statement to OSI on a monthly basis. 

LIHEAP18 

CFDA#93.568 
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Ne\v Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives 

STANDARD EXHIBIT D 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 
70J et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of 
the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS 

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace 
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were 
amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require· 
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will 
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, 
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each 
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. 
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency 
awards the grant: False certification or violatiOn of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, 
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form 
should send it to: 

Director, New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives, 
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall, Concord, NH 03301 

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensing, possession or use of a controlledJsubstance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace 
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition; 

(b) ' Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring 

in the workplace; 

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 

( 

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of 
employment under the grant, the employee will-

LIHEAP18 
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(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug, 
statute occuning in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction; 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDJVlDUALS, cont'd 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS 

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

· US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days afterreceiving notice under 
subparagraph ( d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including l\osition title, to every grant 
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the 
identification number( s) of each affected grant; 
I 

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days ofreceiving notice under 
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted-

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended; or 

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, 
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation 
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f). 

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the perfonnance of work done in 
connection. with the specific grant. 

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location) 

Check D if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. October 1, 2017 to September 30, 2018 
Contractor Name 

Robert G. Boschen, Jr. 
Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative 

Contractor Rep esentative Sig ~atme 

LIHEAP18 
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives 

ST AND ARD EXHIBIT E 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 
U.S.C. I 352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections I. I I and 1. I 2 of 
the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS 

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): 
LIHEAP 

Contract Period: October 1, 2017 to September 30, 2018 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(I) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 

\ 

with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mentio_n sub-grantee or sub­
contractor). 

· (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to a~y person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,_ an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub­
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Fonn LLL, "Disclosure Form to Repo1t 
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1. 

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document 
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,,loans, and 
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

kL~ 
ature 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 

Contractor Name 

LIHEAP18 
CFD.A.#93.568 

Chief Executive Officer 

Contractor's Representative Title 

August 14, 2017 

Date 
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives 

STANDARD EXHIBIT F 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debannent, Suspension, 
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in 
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

CERTIFICAT.ION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

Instructions for Certification 

(I) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the 
certification set out below. 

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of 
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation 
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection 
with the NH Office of Strategic Initiatives detem1ination whether to enter into this transaction. However, 
failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such 
person from participation in this transaction. 

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when OSI 
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant 
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal 
Government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

( 4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OSI agency to whom this 
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification 
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of change&circumstances. 

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier cevered transaction," 
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," 
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules 
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions. 

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed 
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
covered transaction, unless authorized by OSI. 

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause 
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier 
Covered Transactions," provided by OSI, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in 
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

(8) A participant in a coveted transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier 
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered 
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and 
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, 
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties). 

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order 
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a 
participant is not required to exceed that which is nonnally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary 
course of business dealings. 

(9) Except for transactions auth;rized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered 
tra9saction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies 

I . 

available to the Federal government, OSI may tenninate this transaction for cause or default. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd 

Certificatio11 Regardi11g Debarme11t, Suspe1tsio11, and Other 
Respo11sibility Matters -Pl'immy Covered Tra11sactio11s 

(1) The prospective primary participant ce1tifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 
principals: 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for c01mnission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction 
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or 
commission of einbezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 
making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

( c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) 
of this certification; and ' 

( d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an ex,planation to this proposal (contract). 

·Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspensio11, Ineligibility and 
Volu1ttary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Tra11sactio11s 

{To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants) 

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in' . . 

45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 

. (a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such 
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this 
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debannent, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower 
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for 
lower tier covered transactions. 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 
Contractor Name 

LIHEAP18 

CFD.A.#93.568 . 

Chief Executive Officer 
Contractor's Representative Title 

August 14, 2017 

Date 
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New Hampshir~ Office of Strategic Initiatives 

STANDARD EXHIBIT G 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make ~easonable efforts to 
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 

Chief Executive Officer 
Contractqr's Representative Title 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. August 14, 2017 

Contractor Name Date 
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives 

ST AND ARD EXHIBIT H 

CERTIFICATION 
Public Law 103-227, Part C 

ENVIRONMENT AL TOBACCO SMOKE 

In accordance with Paii C of Public Law 103-227, the "Pro-Children Act of 1994", smoking may not be 
permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, 
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs 
either directly or through State or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, 
loans and loan guarantees, and contracts. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private 
residences, facilities funded solely by; Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities and used for 
inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. 

The above language must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children's services and that 
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this la'w may result 
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 per day. 

Chief Executive Officer 

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. August 14, 2017 

Contractor Name Date 
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FAP Approval to Obligate ~~ample Onl)• Exhibit I 

Date 
ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ELDERLY HHS-WAP TOTAL 

JcoNTRACTED BUDGET ' 553,035.00 9,576,150.00 5,250:00 500,001.00 10,634,436.00 
EXPECTED BUDGET 553,035.00 7,422,150.00 5,250.00 500,001.00 8,480,436.00 
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

jTHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 553,035.00 7,422,150:00 5,250.00 500,00UO 8,480,436.00. 
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 553,035.00 7,422,150.00 5,250.00 500,001.00 8,480,436.00. 
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 0.00 2, 154,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,154,000.00 

BMCA 
Date 

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ELDERLY HHS-WAP TOTAL 
I CONTRACTED BUDGET 81,40UO 1,412,466.00 1,000~00 75,618.00 1,570,485.00 
EXPECTED BUDGET 81,401.00 1,092,466.00 1,000.00 75,618.00 1,250,485.00 
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

jTHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 81,401.00 1,092,466.00 1,000.00 75,618.00 1,250,485.00 
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 81,401.00 1,092,466.00 1,000.00 75,618.00 1,250,485.00 
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 0.00 320,000.00 0.00 0.00 320,000.00 

RCCA 
Date 

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ELDERLY HHS-WAP TOTAL 
JcONTRACTED BUDGET ' 79,023.00 1,402,551.00 750.00 76,444:00 1,558~768.00 
EXPECTED BUDGET 79,023.00 1,060,551.00 750.00 76,444.00 1,216,768.00 
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

jTHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 79,023.00 1,060,551.00 750;00 76,444.00 1,216,768.00 
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 79,023.00 1,060,551.00 750.00 76,444.00 1,216,768.00 
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 0.00 342,000.00 0.00 0.00 342,000.00 

SNHS 
Date 

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ELDERLY HHS-WAP TOTAL 
I CONTRACTED BUD.GET 135,549,00 . 2,179,169.00 ' 1,000.00 122,070.00 2,437;788.00 
EXPECTED BUDGET 135,549.00 1,819,169.00 1,000.00 122,070.00 2,077,788.00 
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

jTHISAPPROVALTOOBLIGATE 135;549,00 1,819,'169.00 1;000,00 1;,!2,07Q.00 2;077,788:00 
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 135,549.00 1,819, 169.00 1,000.00 122,070.00 2,077 '788.00 
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 0.00 360,000.00 0.00 0.00 360,000.00 

swcs 
Date 

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ELDERLY HHS-WAP TOTAL 
I CONTRACTED BUDGET . 70,6!l9:oo · 1,248,69!tOO 750,00 •63,621.00 1,383,759,00 
EXPECTED BUDGET 70,689.00 948,699.00 750.00 63,621.00 1,083,759.00 
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

jTHIS APPROVAL TO QB LIGATE 10.~~19:00 . 948;699 .. 00 7~0:00 63;621.00 1,0S3,759.00 
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 70,689.00 948,699.00 750.00 63,621.00 1,083,759.00 
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 0.00 300,000.00 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 

CAP SC 
Date 

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ELDERLY HHS-WAP TOTAL 
JcONTRACTED BUDGET 55,18:,1.00 1,o!i~,58~.oo 750:00 48,635;00 1,190,H9.00 I 
EXPECTED BUDGET 55,182.00 740,582.00 750.00 48,635.00 845,149.00 
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

jTHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 55,182.00 740;582.oo 750.00 48,635.00 845,149.00 
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 55,182.00 740,582.00 750.00 48,635.00 845,149.00 
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 0.00 345,000.00 0.00 0.00 345,000.00 

TCCA 
Date 

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ELDERLY HHS-WAP TOTAL 
I CONTRACTED BUDGET 131,191.00 2,247 ,683.00 1,000.00 113,613.00 2,493,487.00 
EXPECTED BUDGET 131, 191.00 1,760,683.00 1,000.00 113,613.00 2.006,487.00 
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1rn1s APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 131,191.00 1,760,683.00 1,000.00 113,613.00 2,006,487 .00 
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 131,191.00 1,760,683.00 1,000.00 113,613.00 2,006,487.00 
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 0.00 487,000.00 0.00 0.00 487,000.00 
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives 

ST AND ARD EXHIBIT J 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND 
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FF AT A) requires prime awardees of 
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to. 
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. 
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or 
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. 

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the 
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or 
contr3:_ct award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: 

1) Name of entity 
2) Amount of award 
3) Funding agency 
4) NPJCS code for contracts I CFDA program number for grants 
5) Program source 
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action 
7) Location of the entity 
8). Principal place of performance 
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#) 
10) Total coxp.pensation and names of the top five executives if: 

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those 
revenues are greater than $25M annually. and 

· b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which 
the award or award amendment is made. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further 
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General 

Provisions execute the following Certification: 

The below named ·contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New 
Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal 
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. 

Robert G. Boschen, Jr. Chief Executive Officer 

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title) 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. August 14, 2017 

(Contractor Name) (Date) 

Contr~ctor initials: flJ:;:'J 
Date: O :J/Jttf/7 
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives 

ST AND ARD EXHIBIT J 

FORM A 

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the 
below listed questions are true and accurate. 

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 073975708 

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization 
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, 
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues 
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements? 

.x__NO __ YES 

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here 

If the answer to #2 above is YES, ple?se answer the following: 

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business 
or organization through periodic reports filed·under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986? 

__ .NO __ YES 

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here 

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following: 

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or 
organization are as follows: 

Name: Amount: 

Name: Amount: --

Name: Amount: 

Name: Amount: 

Name: Amount: 

Contractor initials: {l.G 8 
Date: o 9 !Jllll'I 

I 
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State of New Hampshire 

Depart1nent of State 

CER TlFI CA TE 

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify tha~ TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY 

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in 

New Hampshire on May 18, l 965. I further certffy that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have 

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned. 

Business ID: 63020 

IN TESTliv10NY WHEREOF, 

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed 

the Seal of the. State of New Hmnpshire, 

this 6th day of April A.D. 2017. 

~~ 
William M. Gardner 

Secretary of State 



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 
(Corporate Authority) 

I, Gary Coulombe, Clerk/Secretary of Tri-County Community Action Progam, Inc. 
(name) (Corporation name) 

(hereinafter.the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly 
(state) 

elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the 
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such 
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on 8-23-16, such authority 

to be in force and effect until September 30, 2018. 
(contract tennination date) 

(date) 

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the 
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services: 

Robert G. Boschen, k Chief Executive Officer 
(name) (position) 

(name) (position) 

(5) the meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with~N~e~w~H=a=m"""p~s~h_ir_e _______ _ 
(state of incorporation) 

law and the by-laws of the Corporation;.and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded 
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. ·Excerpt' of dated minutes or copy of article or section 
of authorizing by-law must be attached. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporatirhis 

14thdayofAugust,20lZ. · . ~ ~ (ti 

STATE OF New Hampshire 
COUNTY OF Coos 

Clerk/Secretary 

On this 14th day of August, 2017, before me, Suzanne C. French, the undersigned Officer, personally appeared 
Gary Coulombe who acknowledged her/himself to be the Secretary of Tri-County Community Action Program, 
Inc., a corporation and that she/he as such Secretary being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument 
for the purposes therein contained. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

.~/~_<]<v;~k 
' _.....,,Not~Dblic/Justice of the Peace 

Commission Expiration Date: 6-19-18 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DA TE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

\,__...--- 8/16/2017 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
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To the Board of Directors of 
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc: 
Berlin, New Hampshire 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Repott on the Financial Statements 

CElr!'lFIEIJ r=unuc N:c:u_~?;T,\\T~ 
\'ii0\JUlORO • j~CJRT!1 (/i\;AY 

i)OVER ~ i))Ni:OHD 
S"ll'..:\ Ti IA~ l 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community 
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), whfch comprise tile 
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 20i 6 and 2015, and the· related 
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses, and the related notes to tile · 
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated 
statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2016_ 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maihtenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audits_ We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United, States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing 0fandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Un.iled States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurahce about 
whether the consolidated finandal statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures. in the consolidated financial statements_ Tile procedures selected depend on the 
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of matedal misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, tl1e consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and 
Affiliate as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and its cash flows for the years then ended, and ~he 
changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2016 in accordance with .accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Report ori Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2015 
finantial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial 
statements in our report dated December 10, 2015. In our opinion, the summarized 
comparative information presented he.rein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been 
derived. 

Other information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as 
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulation_s (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the ·underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures ~pplied in 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 16, 2016, on our consideration· of Tri-County Community Action Program, lric.'s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations,' contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over finanCial reporting and 
compliance and the results of-that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government-Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action 
Program, I nc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.· 

November 16, 2016 
North Conway, New Hampshire 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Pledges receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

PROPERTY 
Property, plant, and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Property, net 

OTHER ASSETS 
Restricled cash 
Building refinance costs, net 

Total other assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Demand note payable_ 
Current portion of long term debt 
Current portion of capital lease obligations 
Accounts payable 1 

Accrued compensated absences 
Accrued salaries 
Accrued expenses 
Refundable advances 
Qther liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

LONG TERM DEBT 
Long term deb(, net of current portion 
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion 
Interest rate swap at fair value 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 

• 1 Total net assets 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

See Noles lo Consolidated Financial Statements 

$ 589,806 
1,248,318 

229,419 
88,880 
40992 

2 197,415 

13,388,060 
(5,052,926) 

8,335,134 

787,761 
14,478 

802,239 

$ 11,334,788 

$ 863,867 
197,181 

2,718 
675,526 
294,243 
176,185 

93,764 
233,329 
510,910 

3,047,723 

5,866,916 
11,756 

8,926,395 

1,630,450 
777,943 

2,408,393 

$ 11,334,788 

$ 488,950 
1,014,274 

247,754 
116,150 

30 678 

1,897,806 

13,468,105 
(4,588,525) 

8,879,580 

540,395 
15,365 

555,760 

$ 11,333,146 

$ 700,252 
271,685 

671,782 
332,024 
134,822 
107,474 
191,343 
280,474 

2,689,856 

5,938,456 

7,385 

8,635,697 

1,951,539 
745,910 

2,697,449 

$ 11,333,146 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

WffH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

Temporarily 2016 291s 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Grant and contracts $ 12,304,094 $ 300,307 s· 12,604,401 $ 13,830,872 
Program funding i,680,245 81,445 1,761,690 1,703,174 
Ulilily programs 1,279,740 "1,279,740 916,957 
In-kind con!ribu!ions 313,821 313,824 252,489 

· Conlribullons 253,726 14,206 267,932 137,183 
Fundralslng 37,281 37,281 43,415 
Rental income 800,533 800,533 824,332 
Interest Income 272 272 485 
(Loss) gain on disposal of prop_erty (175,932) (175,932} 16,560 
Other revenue 421 421 91 349 

Tola! revenues and other support 16,494,204 395,958 16,890,162 17,816,816 

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM 
RESTRICTIONS 363,925 (363,925) 

Tola I revenues, other support, and 

net assets released from res!rtctlons 16,858,129 32,033 16,890,162 17,816,816 

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
Program Services: 

Agency Fund 779,057 779,057 883,748 
Head Start 2,176,567 2,176,567 2,289,05': 
Guardianship 735,473 735,473 767,955 
Transportallon 1,074,998 1,074,998 985,004 
Volunteer 101,998 101.998 87,521 
Workforce Development 366,205 366,205 449,251 
Alcohol and Other Drugs 1,086,057 1,086,057 989,422 
Carroll County Dental 513,419 513,419 496,634 
Carroll County Restorative Jusllce 47,843 47,843 95,727 
Support Center 276,766 276,766 249,099 
Homeless 514,521 514,521 442,493 
Energy and Community Development 6,988,501 6,988,501 7.433,283 
Elder 1, 125,851 1,125,!J51 1,088,328 
Housing Services 161,727 161,727 172,157 

Total program services 15,948,983 15,948,983 16,429,676 

Supporting Activities: 
General and admlnlslra!lve 1,236,429 1,236,429 1,154,866 
Fundralsing 1,191 1,191 4,4,98 

Tota! supporting activities 1,237,620 i,237,620 1,159,364 

Total functional expenses 17,186,603 17,186,603 17,589,040 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS (328,474) 32,033 (296,441) 227,776 

OTHER INCOME 
Gain on Interest rate swap 7,385 7,385 42,327 

TOTAL CHANGES :;.: NET ASSETS (321,089) 32,033 (289,056) 210,rns 

NET.ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,951,539 745,910 2,697,449 2.427,346 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 1,630,450 $ 777,943 $ 2,408,393 $ 2,697,449 

Seo Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in net assets 
Adjustments lo reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Loss (gain) on disposal of property 
Gain on interest rate swap 

Decrease (increase) in assets: 
Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable 
Pledges receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
other assets 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Accrued salaries 
Accrued expenses 
Refundable advances 
Other liabilities 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from disposal of property 
Purchases of property and equipment 

NET CASH USED IN,INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net advance on demand note payable 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Repayment of capital lease obligations 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQU!V~LENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW 
INFORMATION: 

Ca.sh paid during the year for: 
Interest 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING 

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of property and equipment financed by long-term debt 

Purchase of property and equipment financed by capital lease 

Line of credit converted to long term debt 

Sec Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2016 2015 

(289,056) $ 270,103 

472,186 483,149 
175,932 (16,560) 

(7,385) (42,327) 

(247,366) 225,470 
(234,044) (180,597) 

18,335 (247,754) 
27,270 {50,111) 
(10,314) (3,392) 

818 

3,744 16,947 
(37,781) 54,245 
41,363. 23,336 
(13,710) (8,588) 
41,986 (33,228) 

230,436 (125,119) 

171 596 366,392 

75,000 57,159 
(116,320) (286,141) 

(41,320) (228,982) 

191,660 199,201 
13,089 

(219,778) (239,753) 
~1,302) 

(29,420) (27,463) 

100,856 109,947 

488,950 379,003 

589,806 $ 488,"950 

184,941 $ 233,577 

45,689 $ 

15,776 $ 

28,045 $ 
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND AFFILIATE 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATiON ANO SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES 

Organization and Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County 
Community Action P~ogram, Inc. and its affHiate, Cornerstone Housing North, lnc. 
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action 
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. 
All significant i,ntercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the 
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the 
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide 
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or. 
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing 
North, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the 
laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation 
of community based housing for the Elderly. 

Nature of activities 
The Organization's programs consist of the following: 

Agency 
Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management 
support and oversight to our many individual programs. This includes 
planning and budget development,· bookkeeping and accounting, payroll 
and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support, management 
support, financial support and central policy development. 

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liai.son between Tri-County 
Community Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors and its programs, 
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to 
funding sources and vendors. 

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding 
received through a Community Service"s Block Grant, as well as 
management of the Organization's real estate property .. 

Head Start 
Head Start provides comprehensive services to iow-incorne children and 
their families. Head Starf supports children's growth and development In a 
positive learning environment through a variety of services, which include: 
t:.-ar1'y l1earn1'1ng 1 'e~l.LL ~-d ·~-"·· ·w-ll b-·1-~ I\ II ~h<lr.Jr~n re· ,..ej.,,.. h.a.-.lfh 

In dllll ctll ra11111y 1.:;11- t:ll~- /""\II \Jllll\..I Gii I \J IVG tlCOIUI 

and development screenings, nutritious meals, oral health and mental 
health support. Parents and families are supported in achieving their own 
goals, such as housing stability, continued education, and financial 
security. 
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships and engage -
families around children's learning and development. Tri County 
Community Action Head Start serves 241 children in Car.roll, Coos & 
G(afton counties in 9 locations· with 12 center-based classrooms and 3 
home based options. 

Guardianship 
The Organization1s Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian 
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents 
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury, 
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical 
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend 
willing, able, o_r suitable to serve in that capacity. 

Transportation 
_The · Organization's transit program provides various transportation 
services: oublic bus routes. door-to-door service by request, long distance 

I I ... -

medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and 
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities· that 
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 21 
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly 
and disabled, as well as to the general public. 

Volunteer 
Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains a 

·minimum corps of 400 voluf!teers, ages 55 and older. These volunteers 
share their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit 
and public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer 
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate 
over 50,000 hours yearly. 

Workforce· Development 
The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they 
.prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to 

· gain the skills required for better jobs. · 

The Organization· is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State 
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce 
Investment Act. W_orkforce training programs, with training facilities in 
thrP4'> fn\AlnQ nrn\/irlo romnnr,;:int ,;:iQQjQf,;:inl"O fnr noorl\/ f!:lmih1 IT!l~J~\ 
""~~ .~ .... ~, f"'•~··~~ .~ .. t'~•-•J ---·-·~ .. -- ·-· .. ~-~1 ·~"'".1 \"""I 

recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment 
s~ills, computer skills, and business expe~ience, and also piace 
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites. 

Alcohol & Other Drug.s (AOD) 
Services provided through the AOD program include assisting the 
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases: 
Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to 
appropriate treatment facilities. 
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The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provide 
chemically dependent individuals with the fundamental tools of recovery, 
including educational classes, group and individual counseling, work and 
recreational therapy, and attendance at in-house and community-based 
alcoholics anonymous and narcotics anonymous meetings. , The AOD 
program also offers assistance with ·its impaired driver programs. 

The Friendship House, in December of 2014, had approximately $130,000 
worth of investments and improvements due to assistance from Public 
Services of New Hampshire. The Organization is currently exploring the 
construction of a new center for the Alcohol and Other Drugs program, to 
enhance their services. There was $92,748 of pre-development capitalized 
expense in the current year. 

Carroll County Dental 
The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers high quality oral health 
care to chi!cjren with NH Medicaid coverage. The Organization also serves 
uninsured and underin'sured children and adults using a sliding fee scale 
that offers income-based discounts for care. The Center accepts most 
common dental insurances for those who have commercial dental 
insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center, School 
Smiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for 
treatment to over 1, ooo· children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center. 

Carroll County Restorative .Justice 
The Organization's restorative justice program provides comprehensive 
alternatives to traditional court sentencing and dispute resolution within the 
framework of Balanced and Restorative Justice. Two l<ey components of 
this process are personal accountability for one's actions (diversion) ancf 
alternative conflict resolution (mediation). Services are provided by in­
house staff, volunteers, and partnered relations with other local service 
providers. The division was discontinued in January 2016. 

Support Center 
The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direGt service 
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and 
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are 
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis 
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy 
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community 
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students; 
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community 
resources. 

Homeless 
Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project 
that strives to prevent individuals and f~milies from becoming homeless, 
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The 
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients. 
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The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to 
help preserve older housing stock. 

Energv Assistance and Outreach 
Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through 
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community qontact 
site allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and · 
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the 
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other 
programs available through other organizations in the community. 

Low-Income Weatherization 
The NH Weatherization Program helps low-income families, Elderly, 
Disabled, Small children and individuals lower their home energy costs; 
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living 

I 

while improving housing stock· in communities around the state utilizing 
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The 
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates Local NH jobs. 

Elder 
The Organization's Elder program provides senior meals in 15 community 
dining sites, home-delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and 
homebou.nd elderly, and senior nutrition education and related 
programming. The Coos County Servicelink Aging & Disability Resource 

· Center assists with Medicare counseling, Medicaid assistance, long-term 
care counseling services, and caregiver supports. 

Housing Services 
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assistance 
Contract (PRAG) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, and a significant portion of their rental income is received 
from the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

The Organization includes a 12 unit apartment complex in Berlin, New 
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National 
Housing Act and is regulated by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) with respect to the rental charges and 
operating methods. 

The a~ove Organization has a Section 202 Capital .. A .. dvance. Under 
guidelines established by the U.S. Office of Management and- Budget 
Unifonn Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) pa1t 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principfes and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is 
considered to be a major program. 
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Method of accounting 
The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, 
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as 
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 

·Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions, 
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of ·receipt or 
payment of cash. 

Basis of presentation 
Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the FASB in its 
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958 Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit 
Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the Organization is required to report 
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes 
of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net ·assets, and 
permanently restricted net assets. · 

The Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 
2015. The Organization had temporarily restricted net assets of $777,943 and 
$745,910 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively .. 

Restricted and unrestricted support 
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or 
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any 
donor· restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in 
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the 
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction 
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as 
net assets released from restrictions. 

Unrestricted net assets include revenues and expenses and contributions 
which are not subject to any donor imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net 
assets can be board designated by- the Board of Directors for special projects 
and expenditures. 

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions for which time 
restrictions or donor-imposed restrictions have not yet been met. When a 
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restriction (Note 12). 

Permanently restricted net assets include gifts which require, by donor 
restriction, that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income or a 
nr.rfir-.n fhoror.f fovr-l11rl1'nr1 r3nit3I ,,~·inc: r.oc:tr-irtorl hv ~tatP -c::tatutP) hP m::::ir{p 
f'JVI l.l\...JI I \.I l'-""I "-'"'-'' \'-'""-'-'1'-4"'4 I l::::f "-" P''- 1 :::::f~ 1 ''"" & '-"'"-''-' ,..._,.._.._.._ e.J .J ~ ... ... - -... .,....,. -- ".,.,.._ __ 

available ·for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions. The 
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 
2015. 
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Fair Value Measurements 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability (i.e. the "exit price") in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The accounting standards for fair values 
establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes 
the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by 
, requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. ObseNable 
inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability 
developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the 
Organization. lJnobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Organization's 
assumption!3 about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the, 
asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the 
circumstances. 

The hierarchy is classified into three levels based on the reliability of inputs as 
follows:, 

Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assetS or liabilities that the Organization has the ability· to access. Since 
valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available 
in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a significant 
degree of judgment. 

Level 2: Valuation is determined from quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in markets 
that are not active or by model-based techniques in which all significant inputs 
are observable in the market. 

Level 3: Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to 
the overall fair value measurement. The degree of judgment exercised in 
determining fair_ value is greatest for instruments categorized as Level 3 ... 

The availability of obseNable inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of 
factors, including, the type of asseUliability, whether the asseUliability is established 
in the marketplace; and other characteristics, particular to the transaction. To the 
extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or 
unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment. 
In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels 
o_f the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the 
f!'.lir \t~i110 hiar~rr-h\1 \A1ifhin \,uhir-h Tha f~ir \J!:l(11t::i mo~<:: I tn~meant in itc: Anfin:~.hJ f::d{Q i~ .......... "'""""''_......, ···-·-·-··] ........... , ....... ...., .. "''- ·-·· ·-·-- ···----·-···-·· ......... - _,, ..... - ... , ............ ....., ·-
determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety. 

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market 
participant rather than an entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when market 
assumptions are not readily available, assumptions are required to reflect those that 
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement 
date. 
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As disclosed in Note 6, the bond payable, formerly baring monthly interest of 69% 
of the sum of the one month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3.25%, 
when the Organization's debt service coverage ratio was 1.10; or 3.00% when the 
Organization's debt service coverage ratio was 1.20, included an interest rate swap 
agreement. The Organization paid interest at a fixed 3.85%. The arrangement was 
scheduled to expire on August 2040. The notional amount of the contract was 
$3, 145,412. Accordingly, the swap arrangement, which is a derivative financial 
instrument, was classified as a cash flow hedge and was valued at the net present 
value (NPV) of all estimated future cash flows. The Organization's purpose in 
entering into a swap arrangement was to hedge against the risk of interest rate 
increases· on the related variable rate debt and not to hold the instrument for trading 
pGrposes. The swap arrangement was removed in February 2016 when the bond 
agreement was _renewed and the effective interest rate became 2.75% plus the 
bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by 67%. The rate al the time of renewal was 
3.10% .. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the fair value of the interest"rate swap was 
$7,385 and the ·unrealized gain was $42,327. The fair value of the swap was 
included on the balance sheet as a long term liability. The amount of the unrealized 
gain for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $7,385 and there was no fair value of 
the swap remaining after the bond was renewed. 

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from 
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for 
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts 
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental 
and participants in the alcohol and other. drug treatment programs. Past due 
receivables are written off at management's discretion using the d\rect write off 
method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write method 
approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts to be 
written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable, 
and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of 
time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on outstanding 
accounts receivable. 

Property and Depreciation 
·Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all 
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the 
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. 
Depredation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is 
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by 
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or 
other similar allocation. 



Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost 
pool· and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan. 
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are 
charged to expense as incurred. 

Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles 
Furniture and equipment 

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy 

20 to 40 years 
5 to 8.5 years 
5 to 15 years 

Cornerstone Housing North, lnc.'s rents are approved on an annual· basis by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited 
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of thefr income 
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Hous·ing and Urban Development. 
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts 
received from the clients. 

Refundable Advances 
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized 
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are 
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met 
aggregated $233,329 and $191,343 as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

Nonprofit tax status 
The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501 (c)(3) organization in accordance 
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an Organization that is 
not a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a 
charitable contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files 
information returns in the United States. The Organization is no longer subject to 
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2012. 

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, 
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a 
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial stat~ment recognition 
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. 
The Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, 
therefore. a !!ab!Hty for income taxes associated with uncertain tax pos!t!ons has not 
been recognized. 

The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt from Income 
Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after it is filed. 

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has 
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the 
meaning of Section 509(a). 
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Retirement plan 
The Organization mainta.ins a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of 
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Al! employees are eligible to , 
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee 
may elect salary reduction ·agreement contributions in accordance with limits 
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer ·contributions are at the 

· Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments 
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, there were no discretionary 
contributions recorded. Subsequent to year end, the discretionary contributions 
were reinstated by the Organization. Further information can be obtained from the 
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements. 

Donated services and goods 
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or 
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not 
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received. 

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If 
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded 
as restricted s·upport. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of noncash 
assets are recorded as unrestricted support. 

Donated property and equipment 
Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair 
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as unrestricted support 
u'nless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets 
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that 
must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. 
Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be 
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when· the 
donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The 
Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets 
at that time. 

Promises to Give 
. Conditional promises to· give are not recognized in the financial statements until the 
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected 
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value. 
Unconditional promises to give that ar~ expected to be collected in more than one 

· year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their 
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk­
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years In which the promises are received. 
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of 
donor stipulations to the ·contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are 
restricted to use after the due date. Promises thaf remain uncollected more than 
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that 
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. 
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As of June 30, 2016 and 20i5, there were promises to give that were absent of 
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as 
temporarily restricted in the amount of $229,419 and $247,754, respectively. This 
amount was included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated Statement of 
Activities. 

Use of estimates 
The presentation of financial statements in conformity accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments .. 
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC.825), Disclosures of Fair Value of 
Financial Instruments,· requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its 
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization;s financial 
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts 
payable, approximate fair value .because of the short term maturity of those 
instruments. 

Functional allocation of expenses 
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been 
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain 
costs have been allocated among the program .services and supporting activities 
benefited. 

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various 
programs and supporting· services based on actual or estimated time 
employees spend on each function as reported oh ·a timesheet. 

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon 
the classification of the each employee and allocated to the various program 
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above. 

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a 
percentage of total salaries. 

Frinae Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses 
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental 
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each 
program based upon a percentage of salaries. 

Deoreciation exoense is allocated to each program based upon specific 
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the 
statements of functional expenses. 
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Other Occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by 
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program 
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include 
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are 
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses. 

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle 
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square 
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated 
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets. 

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and 
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses. 
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability 
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which 
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a prog'ram. 

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe 
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services. The proposal effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 received 
provisional approval and is effective until amended at a rate of 12.5%. Per the 
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the 
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2015 was 11.5%. 

Advertising policy 
The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it 
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total 
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30,· 2016 and 2015 was $27,769 and 
$18,009, respectively. 

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial 
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At 
year end and throughout the year, . the Organization's cash balances were 
deposited with multiple financial institutions·. At June 30, 2016, t_he balances on , 
interest and non-interest bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up to 
$250,000. At June 30, 2016, there was approximately $864,000 ofdeposits held in 
excess of the FD!G limit. Management believes the Organization is not exposed to 
any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and considers this a normal 
bu~nessris~ · 

Cash Restrictions 
The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of 
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 6 .. The required balance in the 
account is $52,497 and is restricted from withdrawal except to make payments of 
debt service or as approved by the US Department of Agriculture. 
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenishea with 
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit· balance is achieved. The 
balance as of June 30; 2016 and 2015 was $15,372 and $11,135, respectively. The 
Organization was not in compliance with this requirement however, in May 2013, 
the client began making the required monthly deposits. The Organization has 
made all of their scheduled deposits .for the year e.nded June 30, 2016. These 
amounts are included in restricted cash on the Statements of Financial Position. 

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as 
part bf a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 6). The required balance in the 
account is $173,817 and is equal to the interest payments .on the bond for a 12 
_month period. The balance as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $186,908 and 
$186,721, respectively, and the Organization ·was in compliance with this 
requirement. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the Statements of 
Financial Position. 

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who partidpate in 
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is ·restricted for 
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial 
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this 
restridion at June 30, '2016 and 2015 was $509,095 and $276,791, respectively. 
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial 
Position, The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2016 and 2015 
was $503,888 and $271,547, respectively, and. is included in the restricted cash 
balance on the Statements of Financial Position. The Organization was assessed a 
fee of $5,244 related to the unauthorized use of these funds in prior ye_ars. This 
amount was still outstanding at June 30, 2016 and 2015; however, subsequent to 
year end, the final assessed fee of $5,207 was paid by the Organization. 

All cash related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is restricted for certain uses in 
the Org;:rni7ation under rules and regulations prescribed by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development. !he total pmount restricted at June 30, 20·16 
and 2015 was $81,593 and $70,992, respectively. 

NOTE 3. INVENTORY 

In· 2016 and 2015, inventory included weatherization materials· which had been 
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical 
in\/<=>nfrinr ic t:::ikpn ::inn11:::ilh1 C:rict k rJpfprmini::>ri 11<::inrt ·thi::. fin::Lin fircLru 1t 11::11=n\ ····-·· ... -·, ·- .,,_, ... _,, -····--··1· ---... ·- __ ,_ ....... .....,..._ --···;;:::, ..... - ···- ... ··· 1 ···- ... -- ... , ••• -1 

. method. inventory at June 30, 2016 and 2015, consists of weatherization materials 
totaling $88,880 and $116, 150, respectively. Inventory related to the Northern 
Forest Heritage Park was considered to be in poor condition and not saleable and 
was written off in April 2015. The Northern Forest Heritage Park was sold during 
the year ended June 30, 2016. 
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NOT~ 4. ACCRUED EARNED TIME 

For the years ending June 30, 2016 and 2015, employees of the Organization are 
. eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 200 hours and 240 hours, respectively. 

At June _30, 2016 and 2015, the Organization had accrued a liability for future 
annual leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of 
$294,243 and ·$332,024, respectively. Subsequent to year end, the Organization 
reduced the amounf that employees were allowed to accrue to 180 hours as of 
September 30, 2016 and will further reduce that amount to 160 hours effective 
December 31, 2016. 

NOTE 5. PROPERlY 

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2016: 

Building 
Equipment 
Land 

Capitalized 
Cost 

$10,682,236 
2,237,057 

468 767 

$13.388.060 

Accumulated Net 
Depreciation Book Value 

$ 3,325 .. 948 $ 7,356,288 
1,726,978 510,079 

468 767 

$ 5.052.926 $ 8,335.134 

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2015: 

Capitalized Accumulated Net 
Cost Depreciation Book Value 

Building $10,599,723 $ 3,018,512 $ 7,581,211 
Equipment 2,176,915 1,570,013 606,902 
Land 691 467 691,467 

~13,468,105 ~ 4,588,525 -~ 8,879,580 

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of 
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book 
.value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's 

...... .----..-4-,1 _.....,,...! ,,....rl, .:-. ......... ,..... ...... ~ -E---.4-,..,l­
f-'I Uf-'GI lJ CU lU G'-jUlf-'C l lGl ll lVlOl;:). 

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $471,299 
and $482,262, respectively. 

The Organization also had building refinancing costs of $17,730 during the year 
ended June 30, 2014. Amortization expense and accumulated amortization for the 
year ended June 30, 2016 was $887 and $3,252; respectively. Amortization 
expense and accumulated amortization for the year ended June 30, 2015 was $887 
and $2,365, respectively. 
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NOTE 6. LONG TERM DEBT 

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 consisted of 
the following: 

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly 
installments of $1,496, including interest at 4.5% per 
annum. Secured by the general business assets. 
Final installment due June 2024. $ 120,899 $ 133, 110 

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly 
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per 
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final 
installment due January 2027. 

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly 
installments of $292, including interest at 4.75% per 
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final 
installment due April 2030. 

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly 
installments of $74, including interest at 4.75% per 
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final 
installment due June 2029. 

Note payable with a bank requ1nng 120 monthly 
installments of $475, including interest at 4.25% per 
annum. Secured by a first mortgage on a business. 
condo. Final installment due December 2015. 

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly 
installments of $3,033, including interest at 6.75% 
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two 
commercial properties. Final installment due April 
2021. 

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly 
installments of $459, inciuding interest at 5% per 
_annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit 
that was converted to a term loan. Final instaliment 
due April 2021. See Note 8. 

163,026 174,527 

31,688 33,651 . 

8,593. 9,061 

2,8/0 . 

386,831 . 444,989 

23,585 
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Note payable to a related party, interest accrues at 
10% per annum, no monthly installments, full 
principal amount plus interest is due August 2012, 
informally extended. This note was paid off in April 
2016. 

Note payable to a non-profit organization (related 
party). interest accrues at 5% per annum, with 
monthly installments of $3,400. Full principal plus 
interest due during the Organization's fiscal year end 

· 2013, informally extended through September 2018. 

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72 
monthly installments of $312, including interest at 
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's 
vehicle .. Final installment due August 2021. 

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72 
monthly installments of $313, including interest at 
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's 
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60 
monthly installments of $143, including interest at 
5.99% per an.num. Secured by the Organization's 
vehicle: Final installment tjue November 2020. 

Note payable with a bank requiring 18 monthly 
installments of $4,518, including interest at 4.16% 
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on 
commercial property. Final balloon payment due 
December 2018. 

Bond payable with a bank requmng monthly 
installments of $14,485 (previously $15,260 prior to 
the renewal in March 2016), including interest of 
2.75% plus the banls.'s internal cost of funds 
multiplied by 67% with an indicative rate ·as of March 
2016 of 3.29%. Prior to the renewal there was a 
svvap agreement in place v.tith a fixed rate of 3.85<7b, 
adjusted by the difference between the fixed amount 
and a rate of interest equal to 69% of the sum of the 
1 month LIBOR rate plus 3.25% (when the 
Organization's debt service coverage ratio was 1.10) 
or 3% (when the Organization's debt service 
coverage ratio was 1.20). Secured by first 
commercial real estate mortgage on various 
properties and assignments of rents at various 
properties_ Final installment due August 2040. 

12,578 

84,563 120, 147 

i6,832 

16,62a 

6,666 

440,653 .462,878 

2,896,533 2,948,780 



Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance 
due to the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development This capital advance is not subject to 
interest or principle amortization and will be forgiven 
after 40 years, or on August 1, 2047. 1,617,600 

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable 
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority. 
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principle 
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years. 250,000 

6,064,097 
Less current portion due within one year (197,181) 

1,617,600 

250,000 

6,210, 141 
(271,685) 

$ 5,866.916 $ 5,938:456 

The scheduled maturities of long term debt as of June 30, 2016 were as follows: 

Years ending 
June 30 Amount 

2017 $ 197, 181 
2018 598,108 
2019 155,080 
2020 153,089 
2021 443,142 

Thereafter 4,517,497 

$ 6,064,097 

As described at Note 2, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account 
with a bank for the first six notes payable listed above .. In May 2013, the 
Organization began making monthly deposits to the reserve account, but had not 
yet accumulated the required balance. Failure to meet this r~quirement may be 
construed by the Government to constitute default; however, the awarding agency 
is aware of this issue and has not made a request for advanced payment. The 
balance in this account as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $15,372 and $11,135, 
respectively. 

NOTE 7. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

During the year ended June 30, 20"!6, the Company !eased a phone system and a 
copier under the terms of capital leases expiring in November 2020 and March 
2021, respectively. The assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded 
at the. lower of !he present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of 
the assets. The assets are depreciated over their estimated lives. 
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The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2016, consist of the following: 

Lease payable to a financing company with 
monthly installments of $208 for principal and 
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is 
secured by the phone system and will mature 
in November 2020. $ 8,823 

Lease payable to a financing company with 
monthly installments of $122 for principal and 
interest at· 8.841 % per annum. The lease is 
secured by the copier and will mature in 
March 2021. · 

Less current portion 

$ 

5 651 

14,474 
(2,718) 

11.756 

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2016 were as 
follows: 

Years ending 
June 30 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

NOTE 8. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE 

$ 

Amount 

2,718 
2,981 
3,269 
3,584 
1 922 

$ 14.474 

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with TD Bank which was 
secured with real estate mortgages and assignments of leases and rents on various 
properties as d!sc!osed in the line of credit agreement Bcirrov~1ings under the !!ne 
bear interest at 4.50% from December 17, 2015 through June 30, 2016 (previously 
at 4.25% from July 1, 2014 through December 16, 2015), and totaled $600,000 and 
$400,000 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The line is subject to renewal 
each January. 

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the 
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. On June 30, 2016 and 
2015, the outstanding debt totaled $263,867 and $256,698, respectively, which 
included accrued interest of $13,867 and $5,860, respectively. 
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The Organization had available a $25,000 line of credit with Bank of New 
Hampshire which was secured with all business assets of the Northern Forest 
Heritage Park. Borrowings under the line bared interest at 4.25% per annum. The 
Northern Forest Heritage Park was sold during the year ended June 30, 2016, at 
which time the line of credit was paid off in full. The balance at June 30, 2015, was 
$15,509. 

The Organization had available a $45,000 unsecured line of credit with Northway 
Bank. Borrowings under the line bared interest at 6.50% per annum, and totaled 
$28,045 at June 30, 2015. The line of credit was converted to a term loan during 
the year ended June 30, 2016, see Note 6. 

NOTE 9. LEASES 

Operating Leases 
The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space. 
Leases under non:--cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates, 
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has 
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended 
June 30, 2016 and 2015, the annual rent expense for leased facilities was $158,499 
and $180,867, re-spectively. -

Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases having 
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2016, are as follows: 

Years ending 
June 30 Amount 

2017 $ 129,830 
2018 63,388 
2019 62,212 
2020 34,974 
2021 31,144 

Thereafter 215,882 

$ 537,430 

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the 
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder 
Programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization. 
These services are valued based upon the comparative m·arket wage for similar 
paid positions. 

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below 
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder Programs. 
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The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental 
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal. 

. Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of 
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these 
donated seNices since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable 
determination. 

NOTE 11. CONCENTRATION OF RISK 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from 
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, 
approximately $12,200,000 (72%) and $12,900,000 (73%), ·respectively, of the 
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a 
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant 
effect on the Organization's programs and activities. 

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June 
30, 2016 and 2015 approximately 66% and 69%, respectively, of the Organizations 
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing an.d Urban 
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of 
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.· 
Department of.Housing and Urban Development. 

The· majority of Cornerstone Housing North, lnc.'s assets are apartment projects, 
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In 
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated ~nvironment. The operation of 
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of 
federal, state and ·1ocal regulatory agenci.es, including, but not limited to, HUD. 
Such administrative diredives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an 
act of Congress or an administrative change mancjated by HUD. Sucl1 changes 
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, 
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change. 
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NOTE 12. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
,_ 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following specific program 
services as of June 30, 2016 and 2015: 

2016 2015 

NH Charitable Foundation Grant, Mt. Jasper $ 32,653 $ 32,653 
Berlin Area Renewable Energy Initiative 7,281 
RSVP Program Funds 13,637 7,112 
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 135,257 122,252 
Service Link 19,135 
Donations to Mahoosuc Trail 6,842 6,842 
Carroll County Transit Program 682 
Coos County Transit Program 586. 
Senior Meals 53,381 
Community Contact 15,040 
Donations to Maple Fund 1,825 1,825 
EAP 68,143 
FAP/EAP 12,167 38, 117 
Homeless Programs 43,277 47,677 
Temporary Municipal Funding 229,419 247,754 
Head Start 875 
Julien Fund (AOD) 775 575 
Angelias Fund (AOD) 235 235 
Loan Programs 37,427 36,291 

. Private Funding for Alcohol and Other Drug Program 50,000 
L. CHIP- Brown Co. House 22,314 19,443 
Restricted Buildings 99,313 112,813 

Total temporarily restricted net assets ~ 777-,943 ~ 745,910 

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Grant Compliance 
The Organization received funds under several federal and state grants. Under the 
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations 
including use and time restrictions. !f the Organization was found to be 
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could 
be liable to the granter or face discontinuation of funding. 

Environmental Contingencies 
On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure 
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2 

· buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which 
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills 
Company. 
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The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained 
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2, 
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the 
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the 
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction. 

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing 
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the 
environment provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further 
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants· are 
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional 
action including containment and remediation. -

NOTE 1~. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

As ·disclosed in Note 6, the Organization has a loan payable to the wife of the 
former Chief Executive Officer, which was paid off as ·of June 30, 2016. Also in 
Note 6, the Organization has a loan payable to a non-profit organization which also 
provides pass-through state and· federal funding for some of the Organization's 
programs. See Note 6 for terms of the note payables. Total notes payable to 
related parties for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $84,563 and . 
$132,725, respectively. 

NOTE 15. RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNT 

Cornerstone Housing North, lnc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent 
upon HUD's prior written approvaL During the year ended June 30, 2016, 
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. was required to return to HUD the balance in the 
residual receipts account in excess of $250 per unit. This resulted in a refund to 
HUD of $1, 184. This was recorded as a miscellaneous financial expense on the 
Statements of Activities during the year ended June 30, 2016. 

NOTE 16. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

The beginning net assets for the year ended June 30, 2015, for Cornerstone . \... 

Housing North, Inc. have been restated to correct an error. In the previously issued 
fin'!:lnr-i~f cf~+o~.o.nfc c:olcri.o.c u.10.rc o1f~r-~far{ fAr . .fho. {""hiof t:'in0nr"'o. r\ffiroo.r ~nA r'ht,.....f 
1111'-"'1•'-'•~t -...JIL.......,IL'-"111"-"ll\.'-"J -.J"-"l.......,11'-'" 11•'-"I..._.. it..All\.J'.J"-A\.'-''-' 1""-"I t..l.1"'-' '-..Jlll.._..I • lil-C....llV'-' '-/111~.._.I ~!:1...: '-'•t:iG; 

Executive Officer of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., withowt prior 
written approval from HUD. HUD ultimately disallowed the expense. Tri-County 
Community Action Program, Inc. paid these funds back to Cornerstone Housing 
North, Inc. in the current year. Correction of this error increased the net assets for 
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. by $4,479 at June 30, 2015 and reduced the net 
assets of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. by $4,479 at June 30, 2015; 
therefore, these amounts netted fo zero on the Statements of Financial Position and 
Statements of Activities. 
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NOTE 17. RECLASSIFICATION 

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year consolidated financial statements 
have been reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation for the 
current year. 

NOTE 18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of 
financial position date, but before financial statements are availabl.e to be issued. 
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional 
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, 
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. 
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about 
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose -
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through November. 
16, 2016, the date ·the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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Robert Boschen, Jr., CMA, MBA 

WORK EXPERIENCE 
Tri-County Community Action Program Berlin, New Hampshire 
Chief Executive Officer April 2016 ...:.present 

0 Responsible for the strategic and day to day operations for a $20 million agency. 280+ employees 
Chief Opera ting/Chief Financial Officer March 2015-April 2016 

0 Responsible for assisting with the strategic and day to day operations and fully responsible for the financial 
operations, information technology, human resources and facilities management. 

Chief Financial Officer June 2014 - March 2015 
0 Responsible for financial operations and facilities management.. 

Town of Falmouth Falmouth, Maine 
Director of Finance August 201 I - May 2014 

U Responsible for financial operations and reporting related to the $11 million budget for the Town - population 11, 165 
Responsible for the accounts payable for the combined Town/School budget of $42 million and investments of $30 
million. 

City of Waterville Waterville, Maine 
Director of Financeffreasurer October 2006 -August 2011 

D Responsible for financial operations and reporting related to the $16 million budget for the City - population 15,600 -
a service center that expands to roughly 40,000 during the work day. Responsible for the accounts payable and 
payroll for the combined City/School budget of$36 million. 

State of Maine, Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Augusta, Maine Nov 2003 - Oct 2006 
Director of Finance for the Office of Medical Services (Medicaid) Aug 2005 - Oct 2006 
Director of Finance & Reimbursement for Bureau of Medical Services (Medicaid) Nov 2003 -Jul 2005 

D Responsible for financial operations, strategies and tactics for the over $2.3 billion budget for the MaineCare 
(Medicaid) and related Medicare budget. This consisted of approximately 25% to 30% of the State of Maine's 
budget and insures over 20% of the State of Maine's population. 

M&H Logging and Construction Rangeley, Maine 
Controller September 2001 - November 2003 

0 Responsible for the financials, human resources, and office operations (including information technology) for a 
construction business and its related entities including a logging corporation and a land enterprise. 

Franklin Community Health Network Farmington, Maine 
Controller October 1997 -September 2001 

D Reported directly to CFO for this rural health network that had about $63 million in revenues. 

Aetna, Inc. and Aetna Life and Casualty September 1991- July 1997 
Aetna, I11c. -Aetna/US Healthcare -Midwest Regio11 Chicago, Illinois 

. Director Pla11ni11g and Budgeting September 1996 - July 1997 
LJ Responsible for operating plans, membership reporting and budget for the Midwest region (one of six and the 

largest). $52 million in operating expenses. $1.4 billion revenue. $375 milli.on projected profit. 
Aetna Life & Casualty Company - Pharmacy - Finance Department Middletown, Connecticut 
Director/CFO- Finance February 1994 - September 1996 

D Complete responsibility for Finance Department. Reported to CEO. Cost center manager duties. 
D $825 million in revenue in 1996. Exceeded $1.l billion by 1997. Profits of$4 million in 1993 expanded to $32 

million for 1996. D Created 1996 to 1998 strategic plans. 
Aetna Life & Casualty Company - /11formatio11 Tech11ology 
Expense Management Co11sulta11t & Account Representative 

Hartford, Connecticut 
September 1991 - February 1994 

United Technologies - Otis Elevator International/Hamilton Standard 
Senior Tax Specialist, Consolidations Accountant & G/L Systems Admin. 

Connecticut 
February 1988 - September 1991 

Kaiser Permanente, Accountant - Medical Group 

KMG Main Burdman, Tax Specialist 

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS & EDUCATION 
D Member ofinstitute of Management Accountants 
D The University of Connecticut, Storrs, Connecticut 
D The University ofConnectieut, Storrs, Connecticut 

Hartford, Connecticut, Dec 1986 - Feb. 1988 

Stamford, Connecticut, March 1986 - Dec 1986 

D Passed the Certified Public Accountant Examination. 
Master of Business Administration 
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration - Finance 



CORE STRENGTllS 
Program development, management and administration + Community collaborations 

Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet funder standards 
Grant writing and management • Budget performance and financial reporting 

Innovative solutions & problem solving + Capacity building 

Professional presentations + Public speaking 
Dedication + Imagination + Determination + Fortitude 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
T1·i-Cou11ty Conununity Action PrograllL'i, Inc. 
Chiei Operating Oiricer 
Be1·Ii11, Nll C111·rent Position 
Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over 
60 conswner services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include; 
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures 
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic 
goals;, develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency program 
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan, 
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new 
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems 
in the daily operations of programs. 

T.-i-County Conununity Action Progranis, Inc. 
Di,,ision Dit·ector: TCCAP Prevention Ser,'ices 
Berlin, NII 2015· _2016 
Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee 
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of 
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants 
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial state~ents for funders 
;i.nd agency; develop fundraising and mar~eting strategies for programs; represent program through 
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/ division goals and service delivery; 
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony. 

Tri-Count:r Con11111111ity Action Progra111s, Inc. 
Progran1/Dh,ision Director: Support Center at Burch House 
Littleton, New Hampshire 2007· 201.'i 
Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential 
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial 
statements for funders and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues arid_ expenditui:es, and 
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy 
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop 
fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim 
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of 
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards 
and best practices for victim services. 

Tr·i-Count,· Conununity Action P1·og1·a111s, Inc. 
Uir·ect Sen'ices/Volurdeer Coorclirrator: Support Center at B11rcl1 House 
Liti.leton, New Ha11111sbire I 997 to 2007 
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of d~mestic and sexual violence; supervise court 
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems, 
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present 
school-based violence preiention classes for grades K-12; provide on-call cm~erage of crisis line 
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Director: H:n•er-I1ill Area ,J.n•enile Di,•e1·sion P1·ogra111 JL Robillard * 2 
\Voo«Is,•ille. N (~W Hampshire 1999-200 I 
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for 
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court 
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file 
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education 

Counselor /Title I Teacher: Northern Family Institute-.Jeiie1·son Shelter 
Jeiierson. New Ila111psltire 1996-1999 
Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop 
and implement treatment plans and· case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in 
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills 

Exe«utive A«hninisfrath'e Assistant: Norih Country Unite«I \Vay 
Littleton. New Ham11shire 1993-1996 
Bookkeeper with payroll, develop and facilitate community outreach presentations, fundraising; 
develop and administer member program services, grant writing, preparation of financial reports for 
Board of Directors, general administrative support to Executive Director. 

Education 
BS in Hu111an Ser,i.ces. Springiiel«I College School oi Ilu111an Ser,i.ces. Boston. l\IA 
Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated 111ith 4.0 GPA 

AS in Drug and Alcoltol Reltabilitation Counseling (DARC P1·ogram) 
Gateway Conununity College (iorm.erly Southern Connecticut Con11111111ity College> 
New Haven. CT 

A•lditional SJ,ills .. Professional Leaderslti11 and Civic Affiliations 
+ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-2010 

+ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-1998 

+ Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003 

+ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199 

+ Nationally Certified Results Oriented Management Accountability (ROMA) Implementer 

+ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire 

+ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; Individual Member 2008-current ,,; 

+ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2016 

+ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current 

+ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012 

+ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011 

+ Bethlehem Citizen's Advisory Committee ,on Recycling 2007-2010 

+ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006 

+ Small Business Owner: Aurora Energies 2015- amwt 

+ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- current 

+ Member, United States Figure Skating Association/International Skating Institute current since 1993 

+ Coach, Plymouth State Skating Academy, Plymouth State College current 

+ Avid outdoor enthusiast and angler 



RANDALL S. PILOTTE 

SUMMARY 

Accounting professional with over 26 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer. 
16 years of experience managing accountillg professionals. Key competencies include: 

Financial Statements 
Payroll 

Accounts Payables 
Bank Reconciliations 

Inventory 
Accounts Receivables 

EXPERIENCE 

TRI-COUNTY .COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC., Berlin, NH 

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016- Present) 

Accounting Manager (2015 -2016) 

Fixed Assets 
Sales/Use Tax 

06/2013-Present 

• Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 4 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts 
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets. 

• Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense, 
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis. 

• Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting anc:I expense 
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors. ' 

• Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically. 
• Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget. 
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing 

departmental goals. 
• Prepare audit schedules for external auditors. 
• Collaborate with external auditqrs in completing annual audit in a timely manner. 

Accountant (2013-2014) 

ST. PAUL'S UNITED METHODIST CHURCH, Manchester, NH 04/2011-04/2013 

Auditor 
Performed annual audit of the church finances for F/Y 2010 through 2012 which included various committees such as 
Finance, Trustee's, Senior's and Women's Group. Trustee's committee bookkeeper for F/Y 2012. Treasurer of 
Trustee's committee for F/Y 2007 & 2008. During 2012 & 13 served on newly created "Investment Committee", 
established and monitored fund performance and was church's point of contact to the investment firm. 

KENT NUTRITION GROUP, INC. (f/k/a Blue Seal Feeds, Inc.), Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/20 I 0 

Assistant Controller (2005-2010) 
• Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and 

individual financial statements in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with 
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account 
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation. 

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory 
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects. 



• Oversaw all aspects of a proprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal 
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of 
payroll clerk. 

• Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories. 
• Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits. 
• Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process. 
• Ovei·saw month-end accruals. 
• Assisted and responded to auditors requests on annual audit. 
• Filed annual franchise and abandoned_ property reports with appropriate states. 

Accounting Manager (1999-2005) 
Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function. 
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate 
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices. 

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999) 

Accountant (1989-1994) 

2 

NORTHERN TELECOM, INC., Concord, NH 

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989) 

05/1987-03/1989 

Accounts Payable (1987-1988) 

SPECIAL PROJECTS 

Blue Seal Feeds, Inc. Participant of a 3 person team to improve logistics. The project resulted in: · 
• Gained approval for the construction of a 3M dollar warehouse expansion. 
• Evaluated each product, by mill, products to manufacturer vs. buy internally. 

VOLUNTEERISM 

Heritage United Way (f/k/a-Londonderry/Deny United Way), Derry NH: 1996 - 2004 
• Tri-annual Agency Review Team 
• Appropriations Committee 

Manchester Red Cross, Manchester NH: 1995 - 1999 

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE, Concord, NH 



Andrea E. M. Brochu 

Skills 
• Leader Leadership New Hampshire Class of 2015 
• Leadership Exchange & Coaching Mentor Recipient -

Northeast Regional Child Advocacy Center, 
Pennsylvania September 2011 - May 2013 

• Grant Writer New Hampshire Grant Institute 
• Forensic Interviewer National Children's Alliance, Alabama February, 2011 
• Team Facilitator Training Northeast Regional Child Advocacy Center, New 

Hampshire, May 2012 
• Board Member- Coos County Family Health Services, 2013 
• Excellent verbal, written and technical communication skills. 
• ,Computer literate and proficient with the Microsoft Office Suite (Excel, Word, Outlook, 

Publisher, Power Point), Quickbooks, Adobe Acrobat, Constant Contact, Facebook, 
Twitter and Survey Monkey. 

WORK HISTORY 
Division Director of Energy, Homeless & Community Contact Offices (EHCCO) 
November 2013 - Present Tri-County Community Action Programs Berlin, New Hampshire 
- Provide leadership and oversight to all EHCCO program's operations, budgets and reporting; -
Coordinate and integrate programs' activities. 
-Hire, supervise and manage EHCCO staff, including in-house and itinerant employees. 
-Prepare and submit grants and proposals. · 
-Develop, prepare and implement program budgets, narratives, outreach plans and work plans. 
-Review and reconcile division financial reports for reimbursement. 
-Interact with program monitors, outside auditors, Federal agency auditors and others in review 
of program activities, compliance and financial accountability 
-Develop new programs and funding streams as appropriate. 
-Represent EHCCO and Tri-County CAP at local, state, regional and national meetings as 
needed. 

Executive Director 
October 2010 - Present Child Advocacy Center of Coos County Lancaster, New Hampshire 
-Provided leadership in developing program, organizational and financial plans with the ~oard of 
Directors and other staff to advance the mission of the agency. 
-Worked with the Board of Directors and recommended operational objectives that supported the 
strategic plan and maintained a shared vision for the future of the agency. 
-Hired, supervised and disciplined staff members and ensured personnel had appropriate training 
and education. 
-Maintained a working knowledge of emerging issues and significant developments in the fields 
of child abuse investigatfons, team facilitation, and non-profit and agency administration. 
-Developed and provided professional trainings for community agencies and members on issues 
relating to child abuse and the role of the Child Advocacy Center. 
-Served as a spokesperson for the agency and liaison to community groups and the media. 
-Maintained official records and documents, ·and assured compliance with federal, state, and 
local regulations. 
-Managed and conducted ongoing program evaluation including outcome measurements. 



-Identified grant opp01iunities, developed proposals, and produced required repo1is to funding 
sources. 
-Developed relationships and maintained regular communications with funding sources. 
-Maintained capital assets, planed for core budget self-sufficiency and monitored expenditures 
and income of the agency. 
-Facilitated case coordination requests for forensic interviews and case review for any and all 
partner agencies service requests.· 
-Managed and oversaw agency's multidisciplinary team, compliance with training standards and 
implementation of best practice standards in a well organized, detail oriented, and confidential 
team environment for investigative purposes in conformance with New Hampshire Attorney 
General Policies and accreditation standards. 
-Managed and coordinated community "wrap-around" services for child-victims and their 
caregivers. 

Emergency Medical Technician - Basic Volunteer 
2001-2007 Gorham Emergency Medical Services Gorham, New Hampshire 
-Maintained current state and federal licensing status through continuing education and routine 
testing . 

. -Practiced patient care with the use of current protocols and best practice standards. 

Education 
-Master of Public Administration 

·Norwich University 
Vermont June, 2011 

-Bachelor of Science - Criminal Justice Administration 
Granite State College 
New Hampshire December, 2007 

-Certificate of Paralegal Studies 
College for Lifelong Learning 
New Hampshire 2002 

Awards & Recognition 
-Squad Member of the Year Gorham Emergency Medical Services 

New Hampshire June, 2004 
-Faculty Selected Outst(J.nding Leamer in Criminal Justice Award 

Granite State College New Hampshire September, 2005 



Sarah Wight 

Education 

Employment 

NH Community Technical College, Berlin NH 
Associates Degree in Accounting 

Tri County Community Action 

May 2005 

Energy Assistance Services Manager February 2014 to Present 
•supervise the process of the Fuel and Electrical Application including reviewing intake process, certification 
production and incomplete applications. 
*Supervise staff in the FAP Admin office and three Community Contact Offices 
*Hire new employees and follow proper channels to let go of an employee 
*Follow all guidelines and procedures given by the Federal Government 
*Submit weekly FAP reimbursement reports 
*Handie frequent calls from staff, vendor or clients 
*Process refund checks 
*Certify when needed 
*Enter vendor invoices into FAP/EAP system when needed 

·certifier 
*Certify applications submitted to the agency 

for Fuel and Electric assistance 

July 2012-February 2014 
October 2011-January 2012 
August 2010-April 2011 

*Follow strict guidelines to process each application 
*Request missing information from the outreach office or applicant 
*Keep in constant contact with outreach offices regarding outstanding applications 
*Speak with applicants who have questions about the program or their application 
*Speak with other agencies and fuel vendors about submitted information and benefits 
awarded to the applicant 

*Refer applicants to other agencies that may be able to assist them 

Androscoggin Valley Hospital 
Front Desk/Data Entry 
*Answer telephone calls from patients and employees 
*Enter daily charges and payments 
*Daily interaction with patients who have questions about their bill 
*Refer patients to Credit Department for payment arrangements and sliding fee 
*Keep updated spreadsheets for MCR and MCD payments 

August 2009 - August 2010 

*Gather all needed information to process refunds to insurance companies or patients 

Account Specialist March 2006 - February 2008 

*Speak daily with insurance companies about outstanding claims 
*Verify'.denial reasons 
*Compare payments received from the insurance company with patients claim 
*Process appeals on denied claims· 
*Confirm electronic claims 

Secretary 
*Assist patients with registration process 
*Perform various clerical duties to ensure efficient operation of the office 

Medical/Surgical Unit Coordinator 
*Enter physician's orders into the computer 
*Answer phone 
*Assist visitors with any questions they may have 

P & LAuto 

August 2005 - Ma_rch 2006 

July 2005 - March 2006 

March 2005 - May 2005 



Bookkeeper/ Accountant: Student Internship 
*Prepare invoices for payroll 
*Use QuickBooks to keep track of bills pwed and pay bills 
*Reconcile bank statements 

Wal-Mart 
Accounting Office Clerk 
*Responsible for maintaining an exact cash balance within the office 
*Prepare and verify daily deposits 
*Verify and research overages and shortages 
*Validate layaway balances 
*Collect on returned checks 
*Perform cash fund transfers 

July 2000 -August 2004 


